
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

RRPC BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2025, 7:00 PM 

MEETING DETAILS 

Virtual: Teams Meeting, ID: 224 634 587 902, Pass: dBEdSy I Call: 1-802-440-1368, ID: 641278 173# 

In-Person: 16 Evelyn Street, Second Floor, Rutland, VT 05701 

MEETING AGENDA 

7:00 CALL TO ORDER & INTRODUCTIONS 

7:05 APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 18TH AGENDA (Page 1) 

7:07 APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 21ST MINUTES (Page 2) 

7:10 OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

7:15 SEPTEMBER 2025 FINANCIALS (Page 7) 

7:20 REGIONAL PLAN UPDATE (Page 11) 

7:35 EXECUTIVE/FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT  

7:40 APPROVE FY25 AUDIT REPORT (Page 12) 

7:55 REGIONAL COMMITTEE REPORT   

8:00 COMMISSIONER ROUNDTABLE  

8:15 ADJOURN 

Questions? Need special accommodation?  

Contact: Devon Neary, devon@rutlandrpc.org, or (802) 775-0871. 

1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExYTU4MGQtZDBlYi00ZGQ3LWEwN2YtMjY1ZDQ5Y2VkYjY2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226c07da67-d723-47f8-b085-2b684933fef7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2260c9e119-8e68-4494-980c-d5bedd3b121d%22%7d


 
 

 

 

 
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
RRPC BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2025, 7:00 PM 
 

MEETING DETAILS 

Virtual: Teams Meeting, ID: 224 634 587 902, Pass: dBEdSy I Call: 1-8024401368, ID: 641278173# 
In-Person: 16 Evelyn Street, Second Floor, Rutland, VT 05701  
 

MEETING ATTENDANCE  

 (x = in person) (v = virtual) 

TOWN NAME   TOWN NAME  

Benson Cheryl Murray   Rutland City David Allaire  

Brandon Jack Schneider   Rutland Town James Marsh 

Demetrio Gagnon 

X 

 

Castleton Liz Mackay X  Shrewsbury Laura Black  X 

Chittenden Abigail Bradish   Sudbury Barbara Somson V 

Clarendon Brownson Spencer X  Tinmouth 

Tinmouth (alt) 

Judy Gilmore   

Michael Faller 

V 

X 

Danby Andrea Stoddard  X  Wallingford Erika Berner  V 

Fair Haven Jason Coupal                      Wells Francis Gilman  

Hubbardton Robert Gibbs X  West Haven Rod Ethier  

Ira Bob Kirbach   West Rutland Leona Minard  

Killington Will Austin      

Mendon Larry Courcelle X     

Middletown Springs Steven Harrington      

Mount Holly Jessica Metcalfe      

Mount Tabor    ACI-Natural Resources Hilary Solomon  

Pawlet Linda Lynton   Ex-Officio- CEDRR Lyle Jepson  

Pittsford Ann Reed (alt) X  Ex-Officio- CEDRR   

Poultney Sarah Pelkey X  Ex-Officio- TAC   

Proctor  Richard Horner X  Ex-Officio- RRWIB   

Staff: Devon Neary, Nic Stark, Karen Hill 
 

 

2

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MTExYTU4MGQtZDBlYi00ZGQ3LWEwN2YtMjY1ZDQ5Y2VkYjY2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%226c07da67-d723-47f8-b085-2b684933fef7%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2260c9e119-8e68-4494-980c-d5bedd3b121d%22%7d


 
 

 

 

 
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 
MEETING MINUTES  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER & INTRODUCTIONS  
Meeting was called to order by Chair Black at 7:01 PM. Introductions were made.  

 

2. APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 21st AGENDA  

Motion to approve the October 21st agenda by Reed. Second by Horner.  Approved 
by voice vote. 

 

3. APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 16th MINUTES  
Motion to approve September 16, 2025 minutes by Spencer.  Second by Pelkey. 

Approved by voice vote. 

 
4. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

 None present. 

  

5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
a. The Vermont Evaluation of Rural Technical Assistance (VERTA) is hosting a 

Reimagining Rural Capacity Summit on November 13 at VTSU Randolph. The 

conference will share findings from the VERTA engagement, invite participants to 
help design strategies, and prioritize ideas for programs and funding. The event is 

free to register: tinyurl.com/verta-summit. 

b. The Chamber & Economic Development of the Rutland Region (CEDRR) and RRPC 
are seeking applications for Rutland County Regional Priority Projects—high-

priority economic and community development initiatives that position local 

projects for state and federal funding, including NBRC. Applications are due 

Monday, November 3 at 5:00 p.m.; contact Lyle Jepson 
(Lyle@rutlandeconomy.com) for details. 

c. The Land Use Review Board (LURB) is hosting four public engagement sessions 

from 6–8 p.m. to gather input on the Tier 3 draft rules under Act 181, including one 

at the RRPC Office on October 22. Each session will cover the same material on 

how Act 250 jurisdiction will apply in critical natural resource areas. All meetings 

are hybrid, with in-person and remote participation available. Agenda and meeting 
link: https://act250.vermont.gov/sites/acttwofifty/files/documents/2025-10-

22%20Tier3%20rutland%20agenda.pdf 

d. The RRPC, in partnership with VTrans, will host a Municipal Complete Streets 

Training on Thursday, October 23, 2025, from 10:00 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. at the West 
Rutland Town Hall Auditorium. The workshop will cover Complete Streets 

principles—designing roadways that are safe and accessible for all users—and  

 

3

https://act250.vermont.gov/sites/acttwofifty/files/documents/2025-10-22%20Tier3%20rutland%20agenda.pdf
https://act250.vermont.gov/sites/acttwofifty/files/documents/2025-10-22%20Tier3%20rutland%20agenda.pdf


 
 

 

 

 
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 
includes a walk audit, presentation, and group activity, with lunch provided by 

RRPC. For details, contact Ethan Pepin, Transportation Planner. 

e. The RRPC has submitted all materials for the FY25 financial audit. The final report 
is expected in late October or early November. Special thanks to Mary Kay, with 

support from Karen and Anna-Maria, for their work on this effort. 

f. Maggie O’Brien of RRPC and Eric Pulver of the Vermont Department of Health 

facilitated the Northwest Sub-Region Discussion in Castleton on October 15, 2025, 
following the successful pilot in Chittenden. The session brought together 

representatives from Fair Haven, Castleton, Hubbardton, West Haven, Benson, and 

Sudbury to explore how municipalities can strengthen planning, coordination, and 
resilience before and during flooding-based disasters. The discussion generated 

strong collaboration and enthusiasm, laying the groundwork for a potential 

Rutland Region Disaster Cooperative (RRDC) to help towns share resources and 
information to better protect health, safety, and property during emergencies. 

g. After a brief hiatus due to my paternity leave, the Selectboard Meet-Ups will 

resume in January 2026, with the goal of holding quarterly meetings throughout 

the region. These gatherings will build on the success of the January and April 2025 
sessions, which brought together town leaders to discuss shared challenges, 

explore collaboration, and exchange insights on governance and service delivery. 

The meet-ups provide a valuable forum for towns to connect, share experiences, 
and strengthen cooperation across the region. 

 

6. REGIONAL PLAN UPDATE 
a. On October 16, 2025, the Land Use Review Board (LURB) conducted the 

Preapplication Hearing for the 2026 Rutland Regional Plan—marking the first-ever 

regional plan preapplication review in Vermont under the new Act 181 framework.  

b. The day began with site visits jointly attended by members of the LURB, the 
Rutland Regional Planning Commission (RRPC), and members of the public. 

Transportation was provided by Marble Valley Regional Transit District (MVRTD) 

through a bus coordinated by the RRPC. Site visits included potential Tier 1B areas 

in Poultney, Castleton, West Rutland, and Killington. Each location was selected to 

illustrate real-world examples of the region’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) and the 

diversity of growth areas across the region. The site visits offered an invaluable 
opportunity to demonstrate how RRPC’s mapping aligns with the intent and 

criteria of Act 181, particularly as they relate to compact development, village 

centers, and housing-ready areas.  

c. Following the site visits, the LURB held a hybrid public meeting hosted at the RRPC 
offices and online via Microsoft Teams. The meeting included a presentation by 

RRPC staff, followed by questions from the LURB, state agencies, and members of 

the public. The hearing was very well attended, drawing over 50 participants, 

4



 
 

 

 

 
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
including town representatives, regional partners, and state officials. Feedback 
was overwhelmingly positive, particularly regarding the breadth of public 

engagement that informed Plan 2026 and the clarity of the regional mapping. 

Much of the discussion centered on mapping methodology, housing targets, and 
the designation of village areas—especially those surrounding planned growth 

centers. The RRPC, City of Rutland, and Town of Killington collectively emphasized 

that the LURB’s interpretation of Act 181 should reflect the law’s intended goal of 

enabling appropriate, locally guided growth. If the Future Land Use Map is to serve 
as a vision for future growth, towns should be allowed to grow where they have 

planned to, provided that such areas meet statutory requirements.  

d. The LURB is accepting official written comments on the preapplication until 11:59 
PM on Wednesday, October 22, 2025. The RRPC is encouraging all town partners—

particularly those with Tier 1B Village Areas—to submit comments supporting their 

mapped growth areas. These comments are critical to ensure that the benefits of 
Act 250 exemptions are maximized to support future housing and community 

development. The LURB’s official comments on the plan are expected by 

November 21, 2025. Once received, the RRPC will review and evaluate the 

feedback in coordination with the RRPC Board of Commissioners’ Ad Hoc Regional 
Plan Committee, determining what revisions, if any, are necessary before the 

plan’s final submission.  

e. The RRPC extends sincere thanks to all town representatives, commissioners, and 
partners who participated in the site visits and hearing. Your engagement and 

advocacy were instrumental in making this landmark step in Vermont’s new 

planning framework a success. 
 

7. EXECUTIVE / FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

The Executive Finance Committee met on October 14th to discuss the financial audit, 

regional plan update and review the Executive Director’s report.  There was also a 
discussion on how to better incorporate the Commissioner Roundtable into the 

meeting and encourage more Commissioners to participate. The Committee decided 

that one Commissioner should be identified before each meeting to bring up a topic of 

their choosing.  

 

8. APPROVE FY27 DUES 
Neary provided an overview of the FY27 dues, which are unchanged from the FY26 dues. 

In FY26 the Commission changed the dues structure from a flat $1,000 rate per town to 

a formula based rate of $1 per resident based on the 2020 census. Motion to approve 

the FY27 dues schedule by Reed.  Second by Marsh.  Approved by voice vote.  One 
opposing vote from the Town of Clarendon’s representative, Brownson Spencer. 

 

9. TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 

5



 
 

 

 

 
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
Reed shared that the committee received an update on road erosion inventories from 
Planner Pepin.  Thirteen inventories are slated to be completed by the end of FY26, five 

of which are already completed.  Pepin also reviewed available transportation grant 

opportunities with the group, and the committee discussed the change in road pitches 
and how that update has impacted towns. 

 

10. COMMISSIONER ROUNDTABLE 

Pelky shared information regarding the Delaware Hudson Rail Trail Masterplan  with the 
group.  She provided project updates and answered questions regarding scope and 

funding with the board. 

 
Board President Black notified the board that she would be presenting a recently 

completed “Shrewsbury community values map” at November’s commissioner 

roundtable. This was a project that Planner Stark assisted with.  
 

11. ADJOURN  

Meeting adjourned at 7:53 PM.   

 
 

 

A recording of this meeting can be found at: 
 www.rutlandrpc.org/board-and-committees-meeting-materials/. 

 

Respectively submitted by Karen Hill  

6

http://www.rutlandrpc.org/board-and-committees-meeting-materials/


September 
Actual

July 2025-
September 
2025 Actual Annual Budget

% of 
Budget

Income

   402 Local Income 0.00  60,068.00  0.00%

   403 State Income 170,259.95  340,519.90  716,884.00  47.50%

   403.5 VT Dept. of Environmental Cons. 53,792.20  53,792.20  675,432.00  7.96%

   404 Vt. Department of Public Safety 10,774.47  10,774.47  43,594.00  24.72%

   404B VT Dept. of Buildings and Gen. Services 5,024.17  5,024.17  50,000.00  10.05%

   405 VTrans 38,342.75  74,761.18  275,180.00  27.17%

   408 Environmental Protection Agency 33,280.99  39,525.05  142,856.00  27.67%

   417 U.S. Dept. of Labor 39,840.52  39,840.52  549,097.00  7.26%

   419 Local Planning Assistance 48,917.94  49,717.50  199,476.00  24.92%

   420 Special Projects 11,087.64  13,727.02  160,951.00  8.53%

   421 Miscellaneous Income 4.50  0.00  

   430 Interest Income 210.55  812.60  3,500.00  23.22%

   490 Local Match. 722.43  5,226.47  0.00  

Total Income $  412,253.61  $  633,725.58  $   2,877,038.00  22.03%

Gross Profit $  412,253.61  $  633,725.58  $   2,877,038.00  22.03%

Expenses

   500 Salary 79,596.99  205,570.00  911,457.00  22.55%

   Total 501 Fringe $    33,602.84  $    87,269.81  $      359,582.00  24.27%

   522 Contracted Services 59,852.03  78,015.91  1,218,390.00  6.40%

   523 Audit/Accounting 0.00  27,750.00  0.00%

   524.2 Conferences &Trainings-All Exp. 1,508.17  1,508.17  28,555.00  5.28%

   524.3 Trav/Reg/Mileage (Reg Bus) 1,572.76  3,196.76  15,616.00  20.47%

   525 Meeting Expense 435.99  2,551.91  13,925.00  18.33%

   530 Postage/Shipping 41.17  137.02  2,125.00  6.45%

   531 Printing/Copying/Ads 638.22  1,809.40  14,978.00  12.08%

   535 Marketing and Sponsorship 1,201.51  5,800.00  20.72%

   537 Town and Organizational Support 0.00  2,000.00  0.00%

   540 Supplies 482.68  1,020.50  11,030.00  9.25%

   541 Service Contracts 4,161.50  7,256.50  19,800.00  36.65%

   545 Subscriptions-Publicat-Software 3,069.71  10,936.89  34,060.00  32.11%

   546 Legal Fees 0.00  7,500.00  0.00%

   547 Memberships 1,155.00  13,008.00  8.88%

   550 Rent & Office Improvements 10,563.82  23,523.82  61,300.00  38.37%

   550.1 Office Cleaning 900.00  1,300.00  5,200.00  25.00%

   551 Telephone/Communication Serv. 888.59  2,651.41  10,800.00  24.55%

Rutland Regional Planning Commission
Budget vs. Actuals: FY26 P&L 

September 2025

7



   552 Electricity 613.76  1,191.49  6,000.00  19.86%

   553A Grant Disbursements 4,073.02  4,073.02  0.00  

   559 Grant Reimbursement 0.00  66,241.00  0.00%

   Total 560 Insurance $             0.00  $      2,367.85  $        11,500.00  20.59%

   565 Equipment Purchase 1,471.11  11,422.56  13,505.00  84.58%

   580.1 Local Match 722.43  5,226.47  0.00  

Total Expenses $  204,194.79  $  453,386.00  $   2,860,122.00  15.85%

Net Operating Income $  208,058.82  $  180,339.58  $        16,916.00  

Net Income $  208,058.82  $  180,339.58  $        16,916.00  

Sunday, Nov 09, 2025 05:13:54 PM GMT-8 - Accrual Basis

8



Total

ASSETS

   Current Assets

      Bank Accounts

         101 HFCU Checking 275,125.70  

         101-1 Key Bank Checking 340,042.68  

         101-1.1 Key Bank Checking - CWSP - F 328,718.98  

         101-2 Bank of Bennington 29,970.00  

         101-3 Credit Union of Vermont 9,951.01  

         101-3.5 Credit Union of VT Savings 25.15  

         104 Savings - HFCU 89.78  

      Total Bank Accounts $                                                       983,923.30  

      Accounts Receivable

         120 Accounts Receivable 513,771.09  

      Total Accounts Receivable $                                                       513,771.09  

      Other Current Assets

         130 Prepaid Insurance 3,526.00  

      Total Other Current Assets $                                                           3,526.00  

   Total Current Assets $                                                    1,501,220.39  

   Fixed Assets

      150 Maps & Equipment 20,954.71  

      151 Accum. Depr. Maps & Equip. -25,243.16  

      160 Leasehold Improvements 30,004.94  

      161 Accum. Depr. - Lease Imp. -769.00  

      163 Website Development 9,965.00  

   Total Fixed Assets $                                                         34,912.49  

   Other Assets

      140 Prepaid Expenses 176.84  

      142 Deferred Pension Outflow 171,161.77  

      170 Right-of-Use Asset 460,368.00  

      175 ROU - Accumulated Amortization -46,037.00  

   Total Other Assets $                                                       585,669.61  

TOTAL ASSETS $                                                    2,121,802.49  

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

   Liabilities

      Current Liabilities

         Accounts Payable

            200 Accounts Payable 111,642.60  

         Total Accounts Payable $                                                       111,642.60  

         Other Current Liabilities

Rutland Regional Planning Commission
Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2025

9



            214 Health Insurance 1,947.66  

            219 Deferred Grant Income 413,491.10  

            220 Vision Plan 143.34  

            222 Retirement DB -0.01  

            225 Net Pension Liability 458,718.00  

            230 Acc. Annual Leave 37,099.03  

            240 Accrued Comp Leave 4,975.09  

            245 Current Portion of Lease Liability 40,906.00  

            260 Note Payable - Creek Path 10,000.00  

         Total Other Current Liabilities $                                                       967,280.21  

      Total Current Liabilities $                                                    1,078,922.81  

      Long-Term Liabilities

         250 Lease Liability 379,844.00  

      Total Long-Term Liabilities $                                                       379,844.00  

   Total Liabilities $                                                    1,458,766.81  

   Equity

      3900 Fund Balance 392,554.67  

      392 Res. Fd. Bl. - Creek Path 90,141.43  

      Net Income 180,339.58  

   Total Equity $                                                       663,035.68  

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $                                                    2,121,802.49  

Sunday, Nov 09, 2025 05:11:07 PM GMT-8 - Accrual Basis

10



 
 

 
16 Evelyn Street | Second Floor | PO Box 430 | Rutland, VT 05702 | 802-775-0871 | RUTLANDRPC.ORG 

 

 RUTLAND REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

REGIONAL PLAN STATUS REPORT  
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 2025 

The LURB preapplication comment period has closed, and appreciation is extended to all 

Towns and Commissioners that submitted feedback. All comments are publicly available on 

the Act 250 database website under “Board” at 
https://anrweb.vt.gov/ANR/Act250/RPDetail.aspx?AppNum=RPC09-0001. 

Comments have been received from several agency partners, including VTrans, ANR, VEM, 

DHCD, and PSD, along with substantial comments from VNRC recommending significant 

modifications to the regional Future Land Use Map (FLUM). These proposed revisions would 

drastically reduce Tier 1 areas eligible for partial or complete Act 250 exemptions. This is a 

concern given that only 2.5% of the Rutland Region currently falls within these categories; if 

the LURB were to implement these changes, that figure could drop below 2%. For 
comparison, the proposed Tier 3 areas encompass between 4.5% and 8.5% of the Region. 

In addition, staff held a separate review meeting with the Public Service Department (PSD) 
regarding the Enhanced Energy Plan (EEP) and received substantive comments requiring 

revisions to both the plan text and the energy maps. Staff are planning to meet again with the 

PSD to ensure that these changes will meet the statutory requirements. As a reminder, the 
Enhanced Energy Plan requires a separate and parallel adoption process with the PSD. 

The LURB is scheduled to hold a public meeting at the RRPC offices on Monday, November 
17th, with the regional plan discussion beginning at 1:30 PM. The Board will deliberate on its 

final written response to the RRPC during that meeting, and those comments will be 

delivered on November 21st. The RRPC staff will meet on Monday, November 24th to review 
and discuss next steps. 

Because it is not yet clear which comments or statutory interpretations the LURB will adopt, 

an alternative adoption schedule has been developed to allow more time for RRPC staff to 
review comments and make necessary updates to the FLUM and plan. Under this schedule, 

the first public hearing would be held on March 17th, with final adoption on May 19th. A 

meeting of the Ad Hoc Regional Plan Committee will be convened in the near future, and 
updates and revised drafts will be brought forward to the full Board of Commissioners for 
review. 

 

11

https://anrweb.vt.gov/ANR/Act250/RPDetail.aspx?AppNum=RPC09-0001


12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45


	September 2025 Financials.pdf
	P&L 9-30-2025
	Balance Sheet 9-30-2025
	AR Aging Summary_11-9-2025




